# **PERSPECTIVE DISPATCHLOG** USER'S GUIDE

Version 5.8.2

May 2020

#### DispatchLog User's Guide by Resolver Inc.™

Version 5.8.2 Distributed May 2020.

#### Notices and Intellectual Property Information

#### Notice

The materials contained in this publication are owned or provided by Resolver Inc. and are the property of Resolver or its licensors, and are protected by copyright, trademark, and other intellectual property laws. No trademark or copyright notice in this publication may be removed or altered in any way.

#### Copyright

Copyright ©2020 Resolver Inc. All rights reserved. All materials contained in this publication are protected by Canadian, the United States, and international copyright laws and no part of this publication may be reproduced, modified, displayed, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without the prior written consent of Resolver, 111 Peter Street, Suite 804, Toronto, Ontario M5V 2H1, Canada or, in the case of materials in this publication owned by third parties, without such third party's consent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent any material in this publication is reproduced or modified in any way (including derivative works and transformative works), by you or on your behalf, then such reproduced or modified materials shall be automatically assigned to without any further act and you agree on behalf of yourself and your successors, assigns, heirs, beneficiaries, and executors, to promptly do all things and sign all documents to confirm the transfer of such reproduced or modified materials to Resolver.

#### Trademarks

Protect What Matters, RiskVision and/or other products or marks referenced herein are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Resolver Inc. in Canada, the United States and/ or other countries. The names of actual companies, trademarks, trade names, service marks, images and/or products mentioned herein may be the trademarks of their respective owners. Any rights not expressly granted herein are reserved.

#### Changes

Companies, names, and data used in the examples herein are fictitious unless otherwise noted.

Although every precaution has been taken in preparation of this document, Resolver Inc. assumes no responsibility for errors or omissions. Neither is any liability assumed for damages resulting from the use of the information contained herein.

Permission to modify and distribute this document strictly for the purpose of internal user training is hereby granted, provided that it is made evident the document has been modified, and that all copies contain all proprietary notices set forth in or on the original version. Resolver Inc. assumes no responsibility for errors or omissions resulting from the modification of this document. Resolver Inc. expressly waives all liability assumed for damages resulting from the modification contained herein. Notwithstanding the permission granted herein, no part of this document may otherwise be reproduced, transmitted, disseminated or distributed, in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, for any other purpose, without the express written permission of Resolver Inc.

# **Table of Contents**

Important Notes	1
Welcome to Perspective DispatchLog	2
DispatchLog Read Only Rights	3
Access Perspective DispatchLog	3
User Interface	3
Navigating the program commands	7
Create and Manage an Activity	
Start a New Basic Activity Record	
Record an Officer's Response to an Activity	13
Record an Organization's Response to an Activity	15
Note an Action Request for an Activity	17
Add Persons Involved in an Activity	19
Add Organizations Involved in an Activity	23
Add Vehicles Involved in an Activity	25
Add Items Involved in an Activity	27
Add an Attachment to an Activity Record	
Give an Activity-Related Assignment	
Add Activity Notes	32
Email a Basic Activity Record	
Delete an Activity Record	
Schedule an Activity	34
Close an Activity	35
Dispatch Activities	36
Bring an Officer On Duty	36
Dispatch an Officer for an Activity	

	Dispatch an Officer for Multiple Activities	
	Dispatch an Organization for an Activity	
	Dispatch an Organization for Multiple Activities	
	Update an Officer's/Organization's Status	
	View or Update an Officer's/Organization's Location	
	Update an Officer's Call Sign	
	Clear an Officer/Organization from an Activity	
	Bring an Officer Off Duty	
	System values	
Ad	dditional Organizational Functions	47
	Review Activity's Standard Operating Procedures	
	Display Activities Filtered by a Workgroup	
	Highlight Dispatched Officers/Organizations for Activities and Vice Versa	50
	Filter all Dispatched Officers/Organizations for One Activity	
	View a Complete Officer Log	
	Clone Activities and Resources	51
Glo	ossary	53
Inc	dex	55
Co	ontact Information	57
	Technical Support	
	Resolver Inc.	

## **Important Notes**

This guide is for users running **DispatchLog only**, which is the built-in dispatching component for Perspective. If you're a DispatchLog administrator, see the Perspective Administrator's Guide for more information on configuring DispatchLog settings.

If you're running **Dispatch**, the separate application that works with Perspective, see the Dispatch User's Guide. If you're a Dispatch administrator, see the Dispatch Administrator's Guide for more information on configuring Dispatch settings.



#### Welcome to Perspective DispatchLog

Welcome to Perspective DispatchLog<sup>™</sup>, the built-in dispatching component of Perspective. DispatchLog provides a wide range of powerful dispatching functions. Combined with Perspective, DispatchLog embodies one of the most sophisticated and efficient cost-based dispatching and activity tracking methods. The DispatchLog console enables Security Departments to quickly create activities and dispatch personnel and agencies, while the Activity component in Perspective stores closed records of dispatched activities for further description and analysis.

As calls come in, you can use DispatchLog to complete the following important dispatching tasks:

- Easily track the category, priority, location, and timing of activities;
- Document officer and organization responses to and action requests for activities;
- Add persons, organizations, vehicles, and items involved in activities;
- Attach supplementary files to the current activities and log timely activity notes;
- Give activity-related assignments to other users;
- Bring officers on and off duty;
- Quickly dispatch officers and organizations to the current activities;
- Keep up-to-the-minute records on your officers' and organizations' activities and location;
- Review interactive lists of Standard Operating Procedures available for the activities' call categories, sites, and/or statuses;
- Send out mass notifications and/or email notifications in relation to activities;
- Clone activities and available officers and organizations;
- Schedule, copy, and implement future activities;
- Close activities.

As you close an activity in DispatchLog, it is transferred to the Activities section of the Data Forms in Perspective under its original Activity Number. The Activities component provides functionality to create new Activity records from scratch, as well as to efficiently maintain and monitor existing Activity records. In addition to the options provided in DispatchLog, in Perspective you can:

• Create new activities post factum and edit closed activities transferred from DispatchLog;

- Link an Activity record to another Activity or an Incident record;
- Refine records' control and workgroup visibility options;
- Review the sent mass and email notifications;
- Audit changes made to a record;
- Escalate activities to Incident records for investigation.

#### **DispatchLog Read Only Rights**

If your account has DispatchLog Read Only rights enabled, you'll only be able to view activity details and notes. All functions to add, edit, or delete information within DispatchLog will be unavailable.

#### Access Perspective DispatchLog

The DispatchLog module is built into Perspective's user interface. To start dispatching, log into Perspective and click on the **DispatchLog** banner located on the bottom Navigation toolbar along with the rest of the Perspective's components. A separate DispatchLog window will open with lists of the current and scheduled activities, available and assigned officers, and assigned organizations. For more information on logging into Perspective, see the Perspective User's Guide.

#### **User Interface**

The user interface of Perspective DispatchLog is determined by the following three tabs:

• Start: Main component where current activity creation, immediate dispatching, and updating of activity details takes place. The toolbar (Ribbon) contains the administrative, control, dispatching, as well as the activity creation, tracking, and manipulation functions (1). The interface of the Start tab consists of the following three interactive panes:

Activities pane (2): Displays a list of all current activities along with their Activity Number, Priority, Location, Call Category, Reported Date/Time, Description, SOP, and Off Site checkmarks, as well as the Officer Status and Organization Status of the resources that have last been dispatched for the activity, the Regulated Time to Act Alert time bar, and the Time Remaining timer. Under the Start tab, the Activities pane only displays activities that are set for today's dispatching. **Available pane (3)**: Displays a list of officers and organizations on duty that are currently available to take on new activities. Along with the Officer/Organization Name, the pane displays the resource's current Location, Call Sign (only for officers), Team (only for officers), Status, and the amount of Time Elapsed from the time when the current status has been allocated to the resource.

**Assigned pane (4)**: Displays a list of officers and organizations on duty that have been dispatched for the current activities. The data listen on the pane are the same as on the Available pane, with an additional column for the dispatched Activity Number.

- Schedule: The component of DispatchLog that enables scheduling of new activities for the future with the help of the relevant toolbar functions (i.e., Add, Edit, Delete, Copy, Refresh, and Start Now). The only pane that gets activated under the Schedule tab is the Activities pane that can be populated with new Activity records. The Available and the Assigned panes appear grayed out and inactive. When the scheduled activity's due date and time matches the current date and time, it will automatically get transferred to the current activities list under the Start tab. Otherwise, you may choose to change the date of the dispatch or start the dispatch immediately.
- Options: The organizational component of DispatchLog that assists the dispatcher in managing large volumes of dispatch data. All the panes that would typically be active under the Start pane are also fully active here. However, the Options toolbar contains only three functions that perform the Clone Activities, Clone Resources, and Reset View functions. Cloning a pane would enable you to view the available data in separate windows in greater detail, and filter the specific information you want to concentrate on. If required, you may subsequently dock the resulting pane within the Options/Start tabs' interface and locate the referents of additional data contained in the pane on the other panes of DispatchLog.

At the bottom of the DispatchLog screen, you will notice the so-called **Status bar (5)** that contains the clock synchronized with the time set on your computer, and that may display the running text note set for the Site of the Activity record that you selected in the Activities pane.



Start	Schedule On	tions	C						Persp	ective	DispatchL	Log							
Start	Close On Off Activity Duty Dispatch	Dispate Officer	h Dispatch Organization	Arrive Arr Actions	ive Clear Clea II AI	ar Activit Details	y Officer 5 Log	Attachment S Record	OP R	<b>G</b> efrest	🖌 High 🍸 Filte	hlight <sup>er</sup> I	().ocation	Status	Mail	CallSign Log	Workgroup Filter	Activity Notes	
Activities											1								
SOP?	Activity Numbe	r	Priority V	Officer Statu	IS 🖓 RTA A	lert R	emaining	Call C	ategory	y	V		Locatio	n	V	Off Site	Reporte	d Date/Time	Status
	CEN-2011-10-00	008	Low	Waiting	_	~			Alarm			Asis	Convent	ion Cente	er		07/	10/2011	
	CEN-2011-10-00	007	High	Waiting	6	2			Alarm			Asis	Convent	ion Cente	r		07/	10/2011	
	CEN-2011-10-00	006 📒	Low	Waiting				Security Direct	ed Activ	ity/Fa	cility	С	entral C	ampus			07/	10/2011	
	CEN-2011-10-00	003	Low	On Scene	2			General As	sistance	e/Assis	t (	Central Ca	mpus/Bi	uilding 2 -	🕕		07/	10/2011	
	CEN-2011-10-00	002	Low	Waiting				Security Direct	ed Activ	ity/Fa	cility	Central (	ampus/	Building	1		07/	10/2011	
	CEN-2011-10-00	009 📒	Medium	Waiting					Alarm								9	:12 AM	
Available	:								A	ssign	ed								
E	Time ♥ Team ™	Call Sign	∀ Officer/Or Na	ganization me	Status 🖓		Location	V		V	Time Elapsed	∀ Tea	m ⊽	Call Sign	v Offic	er/Organiz Name	ation $\nabla$	Status 🖓	Activity Numb7
8	3d 23h P2	S12	Hoyt, Craig		Available					8	3d 22h	P2		130B	Geor	ge, Sarah	•	n Scene	CEN-2011-10-00
8	3d 21h P4	C300	Rosenburg,	Brian	Lunch - 30	3			1	8	3d 22h	P2		143B	Holla	and, Max	4 0	n Route	CEN-2011-10-00
8	3d 23h P4	C322	Shantz, Gre	99	Available				ł	8	3d 22h	P2		177B	Duor	ov, Alex	0	n Route	CEN-2011-09-00
8	3d 23h P4	C325	Kennedy, Fr	ank Jr.	Available				ł	8	3d 22h	P2		137B	Ower	ns, Derek	0	n Scene	CEN-2011-10-00
8	3d 22h P4	C330	Rutherford,	Justin	Out of Service				-										
9:14	4 AM										5	data d	ente	r. Pr	iorit	у 1-ніс	H respo	nse requ	uired.

You can build the DispatchLog interface according to your preferences, shifting the position of the panes on the screen, arranging them under tabs, and dragging them out of the dock. To achieve the optimal arrangement of panes within or outside of the window, follow the simple procedures outlined below:

- 1. Drag the pane to its approximate desired location.
- Select the exact positioning option from the set of position icons that appear on the screen. As you drag the pane to the icon, the system will mark the corresponding area where the pane will land if you drop it now.
- 3. If the blue area marks the position you wanted your pane to occupy, drop the pane. If not, drag the pane elsewhere.
- 4. To drag your pane out of the dock or dock it back into its previous location, double-click it.
- 5. To reset the arrangement of panes, open the **Options** tab and click the  $\mathbb{E}$  **Reset View** icon.
- 6. Click **OK** on the pop-up window to confirm the operation.



Start	Schedule Or	tions						Perspective Dispats	hLog						
ResetVie	w Clone Clo Activities Resou	ie rces													
Activities															
SOP7	Activity Numb	r	Priority V	Officer	Status V	RTA Alert	Time Remainin	ng CLEAR	egory V	Location	V	Off Site	Reported Date/Time	Organization Status	v i
Π.	CEN-2011-10-00	007	High	w	aiting			Al	arm	Asis Convention Center		Г	07/10/2011		
E	CEN-2011-10-00	006		W	aiting			Security Directed	Activity/Facility	Central Campus		E	07/10/2011		1
	CEN-2011-10-00	005		w	aiting	0 %	- 3d 20	Security Directed	Activity/Facility	Central Campus		V	07/10/2011		
1	CEN-2011-10-00	004	Medium	On	Route	0 %	- 3d 228	Alarm/Du	iress\Panic	Central Campus/Building 1-	. ①		07/10/2011		Pa
<b>1</b> 50	CEN-2011-10-00	003	Low	On	Scene			General Assi	stance/Assist	Central Campus/Building 2 -	. ()	E	07/10/2011		En
<b>F</b>	CEN-2011-10-00	002	1 mw	W	noitie			Security Directer	Activity/Facility	Central Camous/Buildion 1		E .	07/10/2011	_	н
8	6d 23h P2 6d 22h P2 6d 23h P2	1308 1438 1778	George, Sa Holland, M Duorov, Al	arah laximus ex	On S On R On R	icene loote loote	CEN-2011-10 CEN-2011-10 CEN-2011-09	-00001 Central C -00004 -00152	empus/Building 2 -	J.K. Ron					
a .	10 230 PZ	TIME	Uwens, De	Sector Sector	Ele Time Elapsed	▼ Team ⊽	Call V Sign V	Officer/O	Status 7	Location					
				2	30.210	P4	C300	Rosenburg, Brian							
				8	3d 23h	P4		Shantz, Gregg	Available						
				8	3d 236	P4	C325	Kennedy, Frank	Available						
				8	3d 23h	P4	C330	Rutherford, Justin	Out of Service	and the second second			4-1-2-4		
9,26	AM			8	3d 22h	P2	135B	Faulds, Ian	P-STP	LIGILLY I-HIGH TO	shot	iae requ	ureu,		
				8	3d 23h	P4	C328	MacMillan, Dave	Out of Service						
				100					1 K						

For your convenience, the panes are equipped with multiple filters that can be used to sort out a subgroup of entities that correspond to your desired criterion.

- Select the specific value of interest for your criterion (e.g., Available). The grid will be automatically reduced to display just the entities that contain the value you selected (i.e., all officers and organizations that are available).

Avai	Available										
_	Team 🛛	Call Sign 🛛	Officer/Organization Name	Status 🗸	Location V	Time Elapsed ♀					
8	P1	132A	Dolby, John	[Clear] Available	Site C	23:35:27					
8	P1	133A	Owens, Derek	Busy R	Site C	1d 0h					
8	P2	130B	Holland, Mary	Out of Service T-STP	Ontario	1d 12h					
8	P1	133B	133B George, Sara		Site C	23:35:23					
8	P3	130A	Shantz, Gregg	T-STP		22:14:27					
8	P3	133C	Zeyen, Jeff	Busy	Site C/Building 1	22:08:35					
8	P3	130C	Bruce, Tom	Available	Site C	23:35:22					

- 3. To remove the filter, click the corresponding filter icon again and select [Clear].
- 4. To sort the entities alphabetically based on one of the grid headers, click on the header. The arrow next to the header will indicate the sorting direction (i.e., ascending or descending).

Avai											
	Team 🛛	Call Sign 🛛	Officer/Organization Name	Status 4 🗸	Location V	Time Elapsed ♥					
8	P1	132A	Dolby, John	Available	Site C	23:38:51					
8	P1	133A	Owens, Derek	Available	Site C	1d 0h					
8	P1	133B	George, Sara	Available	Site C	23:38:47					
8	P3	130C	Bruce, Tom	Available	Site C	23:38:46					
8	P3	133C	Zeyen, Jeff	Busy	Site C/Building 1	22:11:59					
8	P2	130B	Holland, Mary	Out of Service	Ontario	1d 12h					
8	P3	130A	Shantz, Gregg	T-STP		22:17:51					

To update the contents of all the panes with the current state of the entire data set, click the **Refresh** icon Control content on the top toolbar.

#### Navigating the program commands

The program commands displayed on the DispatchLog toolbars can be accessed via icons or through keyboard shortcuts. If the function refers to a specific activity/officer/organization, you will first need to select the corresponding entity from one of the panes, and then click the icon or press the required combination of keys.

Note: If you have DispatchLog Read Only rights, all functions, except for viewing activity details and notes will be unavailable.

lcon	Program Command	Selected Entity	Shortcut Key(s)
8	Start a new activity	Activity	Ctrl + S
8	Close an activity	Activity	Ctrl + O
Ø	Bring an officer on duty		F8
8	Bring an officer off duty	Available Officer	F9
3	Dispatch an officer	Available Officer	Ctrl + D
<b>&amp;</b>	Dispatch an organization	Activity	Ctrl + B
<b>≞</b> ∳-	Update an officer's/organization's Status to "On Scene"	"On Route" Officer/Organization	F2

-¢ <u>-</u>	Clear an officer/organization from the selected activity	Officer/Organization	F3
₩.₩ ₩ ₩	Clear all officers and organizations from the selected activity	Activity	Ctrl + L
×	Update all officers' and organizations' statuses to "On Scene" for the selected activity	Activity	Ctrl + A
	Display activity details	Activity	F6 or Enter
	Display officer log	Officer/—	F7
Ø	Add an attachment to the selected activity	Activity	Ctrl + T
	Display the associated Standard Operation Procedures	Activity	Ctrl + P
S	Refresh the screens		F5
1	Highlight assigned officers/organizations for the selected activity only	Activity	Ctrl + H
7	Display assigned officers/organizations for the selected activity only	Activity	Ctrl + F
Δ	Prevent an SOP popup window from appearing.		
Ð	Update an officer's/organization's Location	Officer/Organization	Ctrl + I
i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	Update an officer's/organization's Status	Officer/Organization	Ctrl + K
	Email a basic Activity record	Activity	Ctrl + M
٩	Update an officer's Call Sign	Officer	Ctrl + E
<u> </u>	Display activities filtered by specific workgroup(s)		Ctrl + W
<u>_</u>	Add activity notes	Activity	Ctrl + N

•	Add a new scheduled activity	_	Ctrl + 1
<b>7</b>	Edit a scheduled activity	Scheduled Activity	Ctrl + 2
8	Delete a scheduled activity	Scheduled Activity	F11 Ctrl + 3
	Copy a scheduled activity	Scheduled Activity	Ctrl + 4
	Start a scheduled activity and move it to the Start tab.	Scheduled Activity	Ctrl + 5
	Reset the current panels' layout to default	_	Ctrl + R
Ē	Clone activities for a separate window display and filtering		Ctrl + X
3	Clone resources for a separate window display and filtering		Ctrl + U

#### **Create and Manage an Activity**

#### Start a New Basic Activity Record

- 1. To start a new current activity, select the **Start** tab.
- 2. Click the **Start** icon <sup>84</sup> on the toolbar. The blank Activity Details form will open.
- 3. Select the **Reported Date/Time** for the activity. By default, the field will display the current date and time. If you input a future date or time in the field, the activity will be automatically categorized as a scheduled activity and transferred to the Schedule tab upon saving.
- 4. Enter the full call code in the Code field. Based on the code entered, the activity details will populate the rest of the fields in the section. Alternatively, select the activity specifications individually using the hierarchical Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 lookups, and let the system calculate the proper values for the Code and Priority fields.
- 5. Using the **Priority** lookup, you may overwrite the default priority value set for the call category selected in the previous step.
  - The Priority will go back to its default (even if you have clicked Save), if you tab from the Code field to the Level 1 field. However, navigating from Code to Level 1 with your mouse pointer will not change your selections. For this reason, avoid using the Tab button on your keyboard when going from the Code field to the Level 1 field.
  - If the Level 1 Call Category you have selected does not have a Priority default, tabbing from Code to Level 1 (even if you have clicked Save), will cause the Priority to disappear. For this reason, avoid using the Tab button on your keyboard when going from the Code field to the Level 1 field.
- 6. Indicate the precise activity location using the Site, Building, Location, and Section lookups. Depending on your Perspective setup, the system will either populate the address fields with the corresponding default address of the specified location stored in the database, or require you to enter the address manually.



- If the location specified for the Activity record has associated Site Notes set in the Administration component of Perspective, every time you select the Activity record on the Activities pane in DispatchLog, the Status bar will display the running Site Notes.
- 7. If the activity took place off site, check the **Off Site** box.
- 8. In the **Description** text field, enter a detailed description of the activity.
- 9. Select the means of receiving the call from the **Call Source** lookup (e.g., Phone, Alarm).
- 10. Click on the Add icons 🖶 and select the names of the following responsible persons:
  - **Initiated By**—The person who initiated the call and provided basic information for creation of the activity. Enter the initiator's **Contact Number** in the field below.
  - **Call Taken By**—The person who is responsible for recording the call. By default, the call taker is the person who creates the original Activity record.
  - **Dispatched By**—The person who dispatches an officer/organization for the activity. By default, the dispatcher is the person who first started to assign officers/organizations.
- 11. Under Workgroup Visibilities, specify the name of the workgroup that is responsible for the activity in the **Owner Workgroup** field.
- 12. From the **All Workgroups** lookup, select the rights that are assigned to all other workgroups in relation to the created activity (e.g., None, Update, or Read).
- 13. Click **OK** to save the activity in the Activities pane under a distinctive Activity Number, with the Officer and the Organization Status both set to "Waiting".



			Copprenier au Dorano
ported Date/Time	Code Level 1	Priority	Call Source
09/2011 12:43 PM 📫 🛄 🗙	900B Alarm	✓ Important	▼ Alarm ▼
	Level 2		Initiated By
Future dates will display only	Fire	<b>•</b>	🖾 Zeyen, Jeff 🛛 📫 🗙
<ul> <li>In Scheduled Activities.</li> </ul>	Level 3		Contact Number
	Local Alarm	•	780 555 4444
			Call Taken By
			St Jean Clint 🚔 🗙
Activity Location			
			Dispatched By
Site	Address	Country	uq Remnyakova, Svet 🝟 🔨
Acme University	1112 University Drive	Canada	<b>*</b>
Building	Address 2	State\Province	
Administration Building 👻	Administration Building	Alberta	<b>_</b>
Location	Postal Code	City	Workgroup Visibilities
·	T1A 2B3	Edmonton	
Section			Owner Workgroup
•	Off Site		Advanced Users 👻
			All Workgroups
			Update

- 14. If the created activity's specifications imply associated Standard Operation Procedures (SOP), the SOP window will pop up as soon as you click OK. For further details, see the Review the Activity's Standard Operating Procedures chapter.
- 15. If your system's setup includes a Regulated Time to Act (RTA) alert for the activities that match the type you just created, the **Time Remaining** cell for the activity will start counting the time attributed for the dispatcher to act on the activity. This may demand from the dispatcher to dispatch an officer or an organization for the activity, or to change the status or location of a resource or the activity. The amount of time left is also reflected in the color of the **RTA Alert** decreasing time bar. Once the time is up, the timer will start to count the time that has passed after the RTA reached 0%, and the RTA bar will flash red.

Activities												
Activity Number	Priority	Officer Status	RT	A Alert	Time Remaining	Call Category	Location	Off Site	Reported Date/	<b>Organization Status</b>	Description	-
ACT1-2011-00010:	Low	Waiting				General	Site C/Building 1		01/09/2011		) with arrest of	
ACT1-2011-08-0001	Extreme	Waiting				Dangerous Condit	British Columbia		31/08/2011			
ACT1-2011-08-0001	Minimual	On Scene				Alarm	British Columbia		31/08/2011	On Route		=
ACT1-2011-08-000(	Important	On Route	1	57 9 <mark>6</mark>	00:00:30	Emergency Call/91	Alberta		31/08/2011			
ACT1-2011-08-0000	Minimual	Waiting	-			Escort	Alberta		31/08/2011			
ACT1-2011-00010	Minimual	On Scene				Security	Site D/Building 1		31/08/2011		ending Toronto I	
ACT-2011-000020	High	On Route				Alarm/Panic	Site A		12/08/2011	On Route		Ţ
				_	RTA Alert	Time Rem	aining					
					41 %	00:00:	17					
			4		21 %	00:00:	02					
					0 %	- 00:00	:17					



16. To attach supplemental information to the basic Activity record, including the details of responses, requests, involvements, attachments and assignments, double-click the Activity record <u>or</u> single-click the activity to highlight it, then click <u>Activity Details</u> or press Enter on your keyboard. The Activity record will contain additional tabs that can be used to create a complete activity, which is comparable to the records created in Perspective's Activity component, within the DispatchLog module. For further details, please refer to the rest of the sections contained in the "Create and Manage an Activity" chapter.

#### Record an Officer's Response to an Activity

This section will introduce an additional method of documenting past officers' responses to an Activity record. On the surface, it is a concise way of recording the whole dispatch process of multiple officers for a single activity, as described throughout the Dispatch an Officer for an Activity, Update an Officer's/Organization's Status, View or Update an Officer's/Organization's Location, Update an Officer's Call Sign, Abandon an Activity Record, and Clear an Officer/Organization from an Activity chapters.

- Double-click the Activity record you want to edit, or select it on the Activities pane and click Activity Details.
- 2. Select the Responses tab.
- 3. Open the Officer Responses sub-tab.
- 4. Click Add New. A pop-up window will open.
- 5. Select the responding officer's record from the Officer Name pick list.
- 6. The Call Sign field will auto-populate with the selected officer's call sign abbreviation.
- 7. Track the temporal progress of the officer's response specifying the following time points:
  - Assigned Date/Time—The date and time when the officer was dispatched for the activity.
  - Check the **Abandoned** box if the officer has been assigned to the activity, but did not manage to carry out the response tasks due to reassignment for another activity or the fact that they did not arrive at the site of the activity.

- **Start Date/Time**—The date and time when the officer started to respond to the activity.
- Arrived Date/Time—The date and time when the officer arrived on the activity's site.
- **Cleared Date/Time**—The date and time when the officer completed the activity and vacated the site.
- 8. Once the appropriate dates and times have been entered, the system will calculate how long it took the officer to respond (**Response Time**) and how long they remained on site (**Time On Site**).
- 9. Enter any additional information about the officer's response in the **Officer Response Notes** text box.

🖶 Add New Record		
🛛 🛷 OK 🛛 😧 Cancel		
Officer Name	Call Sign	
Norton, John 📫 🗙	130C	Ŧ
Assigned Date/Time		
19/05/2011 10:00 AM : 🎹 🗙	Abandoned	
Start Date/Time		
19/05/2011 10:00 AM 📫 🎹 🗙		
Arrived Date/Time		
19/05/2011 10:05 AM : 🎹 🗙	Response Time	0 hrs 5 mins
Cleared Date/Time		
19/05/2011 11:00 AM : 🏢 🗙	Time On Site	0 hrs 55 mins
Officer Response Notes		
Conducted evacuation of staff from the b	building.	*
		-

- 10. Click **OK**. The new officer's response entity will be saved as an entry in the Officer Responses grid.
- 11. Click **OK** on the activity's form to save the changes made to the record.



🌉 Edit Activity: AC	T1-2011-000413						
Ok Close							
♦ General Re	esponses Reque	ests Involvements	Attachments Assig	gnments			
Officer Responses	Organization Res	sponses					
<u>Add New</u>	Edit Remove						
Total: 2							
Officer Name	Call Sign	Assigned Date/Time	Start Date/Time	Arrived Date/Time	Cleared Date/Time	Response Time	Time On Site
Norton, John	130C	19/05/2011 10:00 AM	19/05/2011 10:00	19/05/2011 10:05 AM	19/05/2011 11:00 AM	0.08 hrs	0.92 hrs
Durov, Alex	PPM-002	19/05/2011 10:00 AM	19/05/2011 10:20	19/05/2011 10:40 AM	19/05/2011 12:00 PM	0.33 hrs	1.33 hrs
		4.6					
Conducted evacuati	ION OF STATT FROM THE DI	uliding.					*
ŵ .							Ŧ

#### Record an Organization's Response to an Activity

This section will introduce an additional method of documenting past organizations' responses to an Activity record. On the surface, it is a concise way of recording the whole dispatch process of multiple organizations for a single activity, as described throughout the Dispatch an Organization for an Activity, Update an Officer's/Organization's Status, View or Update an Officer's/Organization's Location, Abandon an Activity Record, and Clear an Officer/Organization from an Activity chapters.

- Double-click the Activity record you want to edit or select it on the Activities pane and click Activity Details.
- 2. Select the **Responses** tab. Then, open the **Organization Responses** sub-tab.
- 3. Click Add New. A pop-up window will open.
- 4. Select the responding organization's record from the **Organization** pick list. If the Organization record does not already exist, use the Quick Add function to create one.
- 5. The Organization Name field will now automatically populate with the linked organization's name. Depending on the data available, some additional fields may also populate with information drawn from the linked Organization record.
- 6. To add the organization's logo to the record, click the Add icon  $\bigcirc$  in the image box.
- 7. Locate the image file in the browser window and click **Open**.

- 8. Specify the category of the organization's response (e.g., Emergency Service, Responding Service/Agency, Indirectly Involved) by selecting a description from **Involvement Type**.
- If applicable, input the organization's file, ID, or other tracking number in the Organization Number field.
- 10. Select the applicable Organization Type from the lookup list.
- 11. Specify the mode by which the organization has been notified of the activity in the **Notified By** lookup list.
- 12. If there is any documentation associated with the organization's response to the activity (e.g., a work order), note the associated tracking number in the **Reference Number** field.
- Select the name of the organization's primary contact from the Contact Person pick list. If a Person record does not already exist for the individual, use the Quick Add function to create one.
- 14. Enter the contact person's phone number under **Contact Phone**.
- 15. Select the record of the person in the organization who responded to the activity from the Responding Person pick list and the record of the person who called the organization from the Notified By Person pick list. If a Person record does not already exist for the individual, use the Quick Add function to create one.
- 16. Track temporal progress of organization response by specifying the following time points:
  - **Called Date/Time**—The date and time when the organization was contacted about the activity. Check the **No Responses** box if the organization did not respond.
  - Arrived Date/Time—The date and time when the organization arrived on site.
  - **Cleared Date/Time**—The date and time when the responding organization vacated the site after having had completed the response.
- 17. Once the appropriate dates and times are entered, the system calculates how long it took the organization to respond (**Response Time**) and how long they remained on site (**Time On Site**).
- 18. Enter any additional information about the organization's response in **Response Notes**.

rganization	Organization Name		Involvement Type	
🖞 Metropolitan Fire an  🖶 🗙	Metropolitan Fire and Res	cue Servici	Responding Service/Agency	-
	Organization Number		Organization Type	
m	C-9971-L		Municipal Agency	-
S Sportition	Notified Type		Reference Number	
	Control Center	•	FR-378	
	Contact Person		Contact Phone	
	Dalton, Trevor	🖶 🗙	780 555 7777	
alled Date/Time 19/05/2011 10:20 AM : 🥅 🗙 wrived Date/Time	No Responses			
19/05/2011 10:30 AM : 🥅 🗙	Response Time	0 hr(s)	10 min(s)	
leared Date/Time				
19/05/2011 11:30 AM 门 🏢 🗙	Time On Site	1 hr(s)	) 0 min(s)	
Organization Response Notes rrived at 10:30, checked the buildir	ng and left at 11:30.			*

- 19. Click **OK**. The new organization's response entity will be saved as an entry in the Organization Responses grid.
- 20. Click **OK** on the activity's form to save the changes made to the record.

📗 Edit Activity: ACT	1-2011-000413						
Ok Close							
♦ General Res	sponses Requests	Involvements Atta	chments Assign	ments			
Officer Responses	Organization Responses						
• Add New •	Edit Remove						
Total: 2							
Organization Type	Organization Name	Involvement Type	Called Date/Time	Arrived Date/Time	Cleared Date/Time	Response Time	Time On Site
Municipal Agency	Metropolitan Fire and	Responding Servic	19/05/2011 10:20		19/05/2011 11:30 A	0.17 hrs	1.0 hrs
Municipal Agency	Metropolitan Police S	Indirectly Involved	19/05/2011 10:50	19/05/2011 11:20	19/05/2011 4:50 PM	0.5 hrs	5.5 hrs
Arrived at 10:30, cheo	cked the building and left at	11:30.					A
á							-
<b>V</b> .							

#### Note an Action Request for an Activity

- In order to document an action request for an activity, double-click the Activity record, or select it on the Activities pane and click Activity Details.
- 2. Select the **Requests** tab.
- 3. Click Add New. A pop-up window will open.

- 4. Select the requested organization's record from the **Organization** pick list. If the corresponding Organization record does not already exist, use the Quick Add function to create one.
- 5. The Organization Name field will now automatically populate with the linked organization's name. Depending on the data available, some additional fields may also populate with information drawn from the linked Organization record.
- 6. To add the organization's logo to the record, click the Add icon  $\bigcirc$  in the image box.
- 7. Locate the image file in the browser window and click **Open**.
- Specify the type of services offered by the requested organization selecting a description from the **Involvement Type** lookup list.
- If applicable, input the organization's file, ID, or other tracking number in the Organization Number field.
- 10. Select the applicable **Organization Type** from the lookup list.
- 11. Specify the mode by which the action has been requested in the **Notified Type** lookup list (e.g., via Perspective DispatchLog, Investigator, or Control Center).
- 12. Note the organization's associated **Reference Number**.
- 13. Select the name of the requested organization's primary contact from the **Contact Person** pick list. If a Person record does not already exist for the individual, use the Quick Add function to create one.
- 14. Enter the contact person's phone number under Contact Phone.
- 15. Choose the appropriate description for the requested action (e.g., Maintenance, Escort, Window Repair) from the **Request Type** lookup list.
- 16. Select the record of the person who has been administered the request from the Request Assigned To Person pick list. If a Person record does not already exist for the individual, use the Quick Add function to create one.
- 17. Enter the date and time the request was made in the **Assigned Date/Time** field.
- 18. When the action is complete, input the **Completed Date/Time**.

19. If there is a tracking or other ID number assigned to the action request, enter it in the **Tracking Number** field.

		involvement type
🖾 Campus Security 🛛 🖶 🗙	Window Glass Repair Service	Responding Service/Agency
200.00	Organization Number	Organization Type
6	S-796-1	Corporation •
	Notified Type	Reference Number
	Dispatch 🔻	4238-F
	Contact Person	Contact Phone
🗠 😣 🛁 🖂	🗓 O'Sullivan, Elaine 🛛 🖶 🗙	780 555 7809
Window Repair 🔹	🖾 Thiessen, Ryan 🛛 🖶 🗙	
Window Repair 🔹	🖾 Thiessen, Ryan 🛛 👘 🗡	
Assigned Date/Time	Tracking Number	
20/05/2011 09:08 AM 📜 📉 🗡	780 555 7805	
Completed Date/Time		
20/05/2011 10:00 AM 🔅 🏢 🗙		

- 20. Enter any additional **Request Notes**.
- 21. Click **OK**. The new action request entity will be saved in the Organization Responses grid.
- 22. Click **OK** on the activity's form to save the changes made to the record.

4 Edit Activity: ACT1-2011-000413		
Ok Close		
♦ General ♦ Responses Requests Involvements Attachments	Assignments	
= <u>Add New</u> = <u>Edit</u> = <u>Remove</u>		
Total: 1		
Organization Type Organization Name Involvement Type Request Type	Assigned Date/Time Completed Date/Time	Request Assigned To Person
Corporation Windows Glass Repa Responding Servic Window Repair	20/05/2011 9:08 AM 20/05/2011 10:00 AM	Thiessen, Ryan
During the fire alarm evacuation 19/05/2011, an unknown person broke the second left win	ndow at the Front Entrance. North Campus Security has	been called in to repair the window.
		v
Q ·		

#### Add Persons Involved in an Activity

#### Note General Details of an Involved Person

- In order to add an involved person to an Activity record, double-click the record or select it on the Activities pane and click Activity Details.
- 2. Select the **Involvements** tab.
- 3. Click the **Persons** sub-tab.
- 4. Click Add New. A pop-up window will open.
- 5. Select the involved person's record from the **Linked Person** pick list. If a Person record does not already exist for this individual, use the Quick Add function to create one.
- 6. The First Name and Last Name fields will now automatically populate with the linked person's name. Depending on the data available, some additional fields may also populate with information drawn from the linked person's record.
- 7. From the **Involvement Type** lookup list, choose the appropriate description.
- 8. Enter the person's Initial, Title (e.g., Mr.) and Designation (e.g., Chartered Accountant).
- 9. Specify the involved person's **Date of Birth**, **Gender**, and **Marital Status**.
- 10. Identify the person's physical characteristics, including **Hair Color**, **Eye Color**, **Height**, and **Weight**.
- 11. If the person is an employee of your organization, check the **"Employee?"** box and enter the **Employee Number**.
- 12. If the person was interviewed regarding the occurrence, check the "Interviewed?" box.
- 13. If the person received first aid, or was injured or hospitalized as a result of the occurrence, check the **"First Aid Administered?"**, **Injured**, and/or **"Person Hospitalized?"** boxes.
- 14. Enter notes about the person's involvement in the occurrence in the Notes text box.
- 15. To add a photo of the involved person to the record, click the Add icon  $\bigcirc$  in the image box.
- 16. Locate the image file in the browser window and click **Open**.
- 17. Click **OK** to save the involved person's sub-record.

Add New Record				×
Linked Person	Employee Number ADMIN-77 Title First Name Mr. Jeff Date of Birth 26/03/1980 : IIII Gender Male V Hair Color Eye ( Brown V Blue	Involvement Type Witness	Employee?     Interviewed?     First Aid Administered?     Injured     Person Hospitalized?	E
Notes The only available witness is Je	eff Brown who is seated in the cubicle s	ection (ADMIN-77) three rows over Kathy Howard.		A T T

#### Add the Involved Person's Clothing Details

- 1. Open the saved involved person's sub-record.
- 2. Open the "Click to Add Clothing Details" link.
- 3. Choose the **Clothing Type** and **Color** from the lookup lists.
- 4. Enter a detailed description of the item in the **Description** box.
- 5. Click **OK**, and repeat for as many articles of clothing as necessary.

#### **Record the Involved Person's Sustained Injuries**

- 1. Open the saved involved person's sub-record.
- 2. Open the "Click to Add Injury Details" link.
- 3. Specify the **Injury Cause** and **Severity**.
- 4. Include a detailed description of the injury in the **Description** text box.
- 5. Click **OK**, and repeat for as many injury entities as necessary.

🐈 Add New Record		x
🗄 🛷 OK 🛛 😮 Cancel		
Click To Add Injury Details	Remove	
Injury Cause Severity Blunt Force Trauma ▼ Minor ▼		II
Hit by a falling book, bruised.		
		Ψ.

#### Flag the Involved Person

- 1. Open the saved involved person's sub-record.
- In the Flags section, specify the Status (i.e., Yes, No, or Unknown) as well as the Severity of each flag (e.g., Critical, High, Low). Flags may include such descriptions, as Trespasser, Violent, Infectious, Escapee, Wanted, etc.
- 3. Enter comments in the Flag Notes section.
- 4. Click OK.

Add Ne OK	ew Record 😧 Cancel				. • 🛃
Flags					
	Description	Status	Severity	Flag Notes Jeff Brown is the only witness of the incident.	
۳	Wanted	Yes 💌	Critical 🔹		
V	Violent	Unknown 👻	-		
т 🤟	Trespasser	Yes 💌	Low 🔻		
۱ 🤟	Infectious	No 💌	•		
隆 R	Escapee	No 💌	•		
	Armed and Dangerous	No 👻	-		

5. Click **OK** on the activity's form to save the changes made to the record.



🕘 Edit Activity: ACT1-2011-0004	13							[	- 0 X
Ok Close									
♦ General ♦ Responses	Requests Inv	olvements Attac	hments	Assignments					
Persons Organizations Vel	nicles Items								
Add New Edit B	emove Goto								
Involved Person: 1									
Linked Person Last Name	First Name	Initial	Invol	lvement Type	Date of Birth	Gender	Employee?	Interviewed?	Notes
Brown, Jeff L Brown	Jeff	L	Witnes	55	26/03/1980	Male	$\overline{\checkmark}$	$\overline{\checkmark}$	The only avai
4			11	ſ					۱.
	Title First	Name	Initial	Last Name		Involvement Tvr	De		Â
ALTO THE REAL	Mr. Jef	f	L	Brown		Witness			E
	Date of Birth	Gender		Marital	Status	Designation(s)			
120	26/03/1980	Male		Single					
	Hair Color	Eye Color		Injurie	s: 1				
The states he	Brown	Blue		Clothi	ng: 1				
									*
<b>V</b> .									

#### Add Organizations Involved in an Activity

- In order to add an involved organization to an Activity record, double-click the record or select it on the Activities pane and click Activity Details.
- 2. Select the **Involvements** tab.
- 3. Click the **Organizations** sub-tab.
- 4. Click Add New. A pop-up window will open.
- 5. Select the involved organization's record from the **Linked Organization** pick list. If an Organization record does not already exist, use the Quick Add function to create one.
  - The **Organization Name** field will now automatically populate with the linked organization's name. Depending on the data available, some additional fields may also populate with information drawn from the linked Organization record.
- Specify how the organization became involved in the occurrence by selecting a description from the **Involvement Type** lookup list.
- If applicable, input the organization's file, ID, or other tracking number in the Organization Number field.

- 8. Select an **Organization Type** from the lookup list.
- Specify the means by which the organization has been notified of the occurrence in the Notified By lookup list.
- 10. If there is any documentation associated with the organization's involvement in the occurrence (e.g., a work order), note the associated tracking number in the **Reference Number** field.
- Select the name of the organization's primary contact from the Contact Person pick list. If a Person record does not already exist for the individual, use the Quick Add function to create one.
- 12. Enter the contact person's phone number under **Contact Phone**. Ensure that you use a consistent format when entering phone numbers.
- 13. Enter notes in the **Comments** box.
- 14. To add the organization's logo to the record, click the Add icon  $\bigcirc$  in the image box.
- 15. Locate the image file in the browser window and click **Open**.

🕂 Add New Record				x
OK Cancel				
Linked Organization				*
	Organization Name	Involvement Type		
	Metropolitan Police Service	Indirectly Involved	•	
Metropolitan	Organization Number	Organization Type		
Delies	C-9870-D	Municipal Agency	<b>•</b>	
Police	Notified By	Reference Number		
💐 🕴 Services 🖗	Control Center 👻	H-9870		
	Contact Person	Contact Phone		
	🖾 Armando, Luis 🛛 🝦 🗙	780 555 0123		
Comments Called for supplementary investigation			*	
			Ŧ	
				Ŧ

16. Click **OK** on the activity's form to save the changes made to the record.

Edit Activity: ACT1-2011-000413						
Ok Close						
♦ General ♦ Responses R	equests Involvements Atta	achments Assignments	5			
Persons Organizations Vehicle	s Items					
• Add New • Edit • Remov	re = <u>Goto</u>					
Involved Organizations: 1						
Linked Organization Organizat	tion Name Involvement Type	Organization Number	Organization Type	Notified By	Comments	
Metropolitan Police S Metropolitar	n Police S Indirectly Involved	C-9870-D	Municipal Agency	Control Center	Called for suppl	
4		III				•
(	Organization Name	III Contact Phone				•
	Organization Name Metropolitan Police Service	rrr Contact Phone 780 555 0123				•
	Organization Name Metropolitan Police Service Reference Number	III Contact Phone 780 555 0123 Organization Number				• •
Metropolitan	Organization Name Metropolitan Police Service Reference Number H-9870	TT Contact Phone 780 555 0123 Organization Number C-9870-D				E
Metropolitan Police	Organization Name Metropolitan Police Service Reference Number H-9870 Organization Type	m Contact Phone 780 555 0123 Organization Number C-9870-D Involvement Type				E
Metropolitan Police Services	Organization Name Metropolitan Police Service Reference Number H-9870 Organization Type Municipal Agency	m Contact Phone 780 555 0123 Organization Number C-9870-D Involvement Type Indirectly Involved				E
Metropolitan Police Services	Organization Name Metropolitan Police Service Reference Number H-9870 Organization Type Municipal Agency Notfied By	III Contact Phone 780 555 0123 Organization Number C-9870-D Involvement Type Indirectly Involved				E E
Metropolitan Police Services	Organization Name Metropolitan Police Service Reference Number H-9870 Organization Type Municipal Agency Notified By	III Contact Phone 780 555 0123 Organization Number C-9870-D Involvement Type Indirectly Involved				

#### Add Vehicles Involved in an Activity

- In order to add an involved vehicle to an Activity record, double-click the record or select it on the Activities pane and click Activity Details.
- 2. Select the **Involvements** tab.
- 3. Click the **Vehicles** sub-tab.
- 4. Click Add New. A pop-up window will open.
- 5. Select the involved vehicle from the **Linked Vehicle** pick list. If a Vehicle record does not already exist, use the Quick Add function to create one.
- 6. The License Plate field will now automatically populate with the linked vehicle's license plate number. Depending on the data available, some additional fields may also populate with information drawn from the linked vehicle's record.
- Indicate how the vehicle became involved in the occurrence by selecting a description from the Involvement Type lookup list.
- 8. Select the most appropriate description of the vehicle's current status from the **Disposition** lookup list (e.g., Seized, Stolen, Released to Owner).
- 9. Specify the vehicle's **Year**, **Make**, **Model**, **Style**, and **Color**. Your selection in the Model field will depend on the value recorded in the Make field.

- 10. If known, enter the vehicle's VIN and approximate Vehicle Value.
- 11. If the vehicle belongs to your organization, check the "Company Vehicle?" box.
- 12. If known, indicate where the vehicle's license plate is registered in the **Country** and **State/Province** fields.
- 13. If the vehicle's driver was identified, check the Driver Identified box. Then, select the driver's name from the Vehicle Driver pick list. If a Person record does not already exist for the individual, use the Quick Add function to create one.
- 14. Enter any applicable notes under **Comments**.
- 15. To add a photo of the vehicle to the record, click the Add icon  $\bigcirc$  in the image box.
- 16. Locate the image file in the browser window and click **Open**.

🗗 Add New Record			
OK Cancel			
Linked Vehicle	License Plate URV-345	Involvement Type Subject	Ŧ
	Disposition Towed/Impounded	Year 2	007 🗘
	Make BMW 👻	Style 2 Door	•
	Model M3 👻	Color Green	Ŧ
Company Vehicle?	VIN 4LUKPI22222M333333	Vehicle Value \$103,250.00	USD
Country	Driver Identified		
State\Province	Vehicle Driver's ID	<b>₽</b> ×	
Comments Abandoned on premises. Stolen items fo	ound inside.		*
			<b>.</b>

17. Click **OK** on the activity's form to save the changes made to the record.

4	Edit Activity: AC	T1-2011-000413													
	Ok Close														
	General 🔶	Responses Re	equests Involvements	Attachm	nents Assignme	nts									
	Persons Organizations Vehicles Items														
	Add New = Edt = Remove = Go to														
	Involved Vehicles: 1														
	Linked Vehicle License Plate Involvement Type Year Make/Model Vehicle Value Vehicle Driver's ID Comments														
	URV-345 URV-345 Subject 2007 BMW//M3 \$ 103,250.00 Brown, Janice L Abandoned on p														
	attl		License Plate	Style					•						
	in the state	000	URV-345	2 Doc	r		Company Vehicle?								
	111600	<b>2N</b> .	Year	Dispos	sition		Driver Identified		E						
	1	CO PR	2007	Towe	d/Impounded										
			Involvement Type	Color											
	and the second second	4	Subject	Gree	n										
	a .		VIN	Vehicl	e Value				Ŧ						
	W.														

#### Add Items Involved in an Activity

- In order to add an involved item to an Activity record, double-click the record or select it on the Activities pane and click Activity Details.
- 2. Select the **Involvements** tab.
- 3. Click the **Items** sub-tab.
- 4. Click Add New. A pop-up window will open.
- 5. Select the involved item's name from the **Linked Item** pick list. If an Item record does not already exist, use the Quick Add function to create one.
  - The Item Name field will now automatically populate with the linked item's name.
     Depending on the data available, some additional fields may also populate with information drawn from the linked item's record.
- 6. If known, enter the serial or ID number of the item in the Serial Number field.
- Select the most appropriate description of the item's current status from the Disposition lookup list (e.g., Seized as Evidence, Destroyed, Returned to Owner).
- 8. Enter the item's exact or estimated value in the Item Value field.

- 9. If applicable, check the **"Item is Evidence?"** box.
- Identify the general classification of the item by making selections from the Item Category and Item Type lookup lists. These fields are hierarchical.
- 11. Specify the Item Make and Item Model. These fields are hierarchical.
- 12. If the item's owner is known, check the "Owner Identified/Known?" box. Then, select the name of the organization or person that owns the item from either the Organization Owned By or Person Owned By pick lists. If an Organization or a Person record does not already exist, use the Quick Add function to create one.
- 13. Add comments about the item in the **Notes** field.
- 14. To add a photo of the item to the record, click the Add icon  $\bigcirc$  in the image box.
- 15. Locate the image file in the browser window and click **Open**.
- 16. Click **OK** on the activity's form to save the changes made to the record.



#### Add an Attachment to an Activity Record

There are three ways to add attachments to an activity. The first way is via the **Activity Details** option, the second way is via the **Attachment** option, and the third way is by dragging a file you want to attach with the mouse to the relevant Activity record. The former option provides an opportunity to view any of the attached files, if required. The latter option is the quickest option, as it immediately transfers you to the step 3, skipping the first two formal steps of the other options.

- In order to add an image, media file, or a document to an Activity record, select the record on the Activities pane and either click Activity Details, open the Attachments tab and click Add
   New, or click Attachment. If you prefer a quicker option, drag the file you want to attach to the Activity record on the Activities pane. A pop-up window will open.
- 2. Add attachments by either dragging and dropping, or clicking Browse.
- 3. For each attachment:
  - a. The **Attachment Title** field will automatically populate with the name of the attached file. If necessary, modify the name.
  - b. From the **Attachment Type** lookup list, select the appropriate designator for the attachment (e.g., Document, Picture, Video, Voice Recording).
  - c. Give an overview of the attachment in the **Description** text box.
  - d. For image files (e.g., .bmp, .gif, .jpg, .png), check the **"Include when Printing?"** box to have a copy of the image included with every print-out of the record.
  - e. Click **Remove** to remove any unwanted attachments.
- 4. Once finished working with attachments, click OK.

Attachment Mana	ger				
Drag and drop files	below			- or -	Browse
Remove	Attachment Title	Attachment Type	Include when printing?	Desc	cription
Remove					
Attachment Title					
Attachment Type					
	-	Include when printing?			
Description					
File Name					
File Extension File Size					
				ОК	Cancel
ady					

7. To preview an attachment, ensure the attachment is highlighted in the grid and click View.

- 8. Once the attachment is loaded, click **Open**. The attachment file will open in a separate window.
- 9. Close the window to return to the record.

A Edit Activity: ACT1-2011-000413	
Ok Close	
♦ General ♦ Responses ♦ Requests ♦ Involvements Attachments Assignments	
= Add New = Edit = Remove = View	
Total Attachments: 1	
Attachment Title Attachment Type File Name File Extension File Size Description	
Dell Inspiron E1 Picture bullet .jpg 1 KB Photo of the stolen laptop.	
Completed  Attachment Manager  Completed  Completed Completed Completed  Completed Completed Completed Completed Complet	
😟 -	

#### **Give an Activity-Related Assignment**

- In order to give an activity-related assignment to another user, select the Activity record on the Activities pane and click Activity Details.
- 2. Open the Assignments tab and click Add New. A pop-up window will open.
- 3. Choose the applicable option from the **Assignment Type** lookup list.
  - By default, your name will appear in the **Assigned By Person** field. If you are not the person who created the assignment, select the applicable person from the pick list.
- 4. Select the user who must complete the assignment from the Assigned To Person pick list.
- Complete the Assigned Date, and enter the date the assignment must be completed under Due Date.
- When the assignment is finished, check the "Completed?" box and enter the appropriate date in the Completed Date field.



- 7. Enter notes or instructions in the **Message/Task** text box.
- 8. Click **OK**. The new assignment will be added to the Assignments grid.

🕂 Add New Record		
OK Cancel		
Assignment Type Information Request Assigned Date 19/09/2011 02:45 PM Due Date 20/09/2011 02:45 PM Discondente	Assigned By Person           Image: St. Jean. Clint           Assigned To Person           Image: Campbell, Keith           Completed?	<b>₽</b> X <b>₽</b> X
Message./Task Background check on Jeff Brown.		*

9. Click **OK** on the activity's form to save the changes made to the record.

Edit Activity: A	ACT1-2011-000413	}				- • •
Ok Clos	e					
♦ General	<ul> <li>Responses</li> </ul>	♦ Requests ♦ I	nvolvements 🔶 Attac	chments	ents	
Add New	• Edit • Remo	ve Notify				
Total Assignmen	ts: 1 Completed /	Assignments: 0				
Completed?	Assigned Date	Assignment Type	Assigned By Person	Assigned To Person	Message/Task	
	19/09/2011	Information Request	St. Jean, Clint	Campbell, Keith	Background che	
<ul> <li>CD: Clint _ 10</li> </ul>	0/00/2011 2:40:10 0	DM LM CER N/A				
Unt - I	3/U3/2011 2:48:161	FIM - LIM: CIINE - NZA				

- 10. To send an email notification of any of the record's assignments, select the specific assignment in the list and click **Notify**. An email message will open that contains the assignment and the activity details.
- 11. Check the message details, specify the recipients of the message, and add any other information that you think is necessary (e.g., attachments).
- 12. Click Send.

😋 Send Message			
Mail Send Mail Document	Paste Check Subject: Assignme	czirfusz@ppm2000.com iillier@ppm2000.com ent Reminder (Description: ACT1-2011-000413) Mail Properties	Format
Send ment Details		Add \ Pameura Attachmente	
Assignment Type Into Assigned By St. J	lean, C lint	Proceed	Add 🗙 Remove
Assigned To Can	npbell, Keith	File Name	Size
Assigned Date 19/0	9/2011 2:45:00 PM	brown.jpg	935.83 KB
Due Date 20/0	9/2011 2:45:00 PM		E
Completed?			
Message/Task Bac	komund check on Jeff Brown		
[[]]]]			
Activity Details for ACT1-2011-000413		_	
Reported Date/Time	19/09/2011 10:49:53 AM		
Call Category	Activated Alarm		
Lo cation			
Geo Rollup			

#### **Add Activity Notes**

- 1. Select the Activity record on the Activities pane and click Activity Notes on the toolbar. The Notes pane will expand to the left of the Activities pane.
- 2. To enter a brief update to the activity's disposition or status, type the notes in the **Notes** text box and click **Add Notes**.
  - Each note entered under the selected activity will be supplied with a date stamp and the user name of the reporting person.
- 3. To hide the Notes pane, deselect the Activity Notes icon.



R © Resolver Inc.

#### **Email a Basic Activity Record**

- To email the basic details of an Activity record, select the record on the Activities pane and click
   Mail. The Send Message screen will appear with the details of the record that have been specified under the General tab. (For details, see Create a New Basic Activity Record in the Perspective User's Guide).
- If required, edit the subject and the text of the original message. If you want to format the message details in plain text rather than the default HTML table, unclick the Format button. By default, the formatting option is active.
- 3. Click **Check** to check the spelling of your message.
- 4. To add an attachment to your email, click Attachments. A window will appear where you can add attachments by clicking Add, selecting the file you need and clicking Open. Click Proceed to return to the main message screen.
- 5. Specify the recipients' email addresses. You may type in a recipient's email address directly into the **To** and/or **CC** fields, or import a contact from Perspective's database by clicking To and/or CC and selecting a person from the displayed Entity List. The Entity List will be populated with user records that contain an email address with the **Primary Email** box checked. If you're emailing more than one person, separate the email addresses by a semi-colon.
- 6. To set a priority for the message you are sending, click **Priority** and select from High, Normal (default), and Low priority options.
- 7. When finished with editing of your email message, click **Send**.

#### **Delete an Activity Record**

- To delete an Activity record from DispatchLog, select it in the Activities pane and press the <Delete> key.
- 2. Click **OK** when prompted to confirm to completely remove the record from the database.

Note: Only users with activity delete rights can delete an activity record.

#### Schedule an Activity

To create an Activity record for future dispatching (i.e., a scheduled activity), open the **Schedule** tab and click **Add** on the toolbar. The only difference between creating a new current and a new scheduled activity is the date and time you input as **Reported Date/Time**. In case of the current activity, the date must not be modified, whereas the scheduled Activity record must contain a future date. By default, the Reported Date/Time field of a scheduled Activity record will contain tomorrow's date.

For a full description of the procedures involved in creating a new scheduled Activity record, please, refer to the "Create and Manage an Activity" chapter. Please note that scheduled activities only contain records of officers' and organizations' responses when they reach the state of a current activity. Until then, they are stored as passive records of activities planned for future dispatching.

To edit a scheduled activity adding supplemental details (such as requests, involvements, attachments, and assignments), select it in the Activities pane and  $\bigotimes$  Edit. The Activity record with the full set of tabs will be displayed.

To delete a scheduled activity, click **Delete** and confirm you wish to permanently delete the scheduled activity and its data. Note: You cannot delete a scheduled activity if your user account doesn't have the right to delete activities.

To copy a scheduled activity, select it in the Activities pane and **Copy**. The exact copy of the selected basic Activity record will be displayed for editing. Note that the Copy function does not apply to requests, involvements, attachments, or assignments. To save the copied Activity record under a new number, click **OK**.

To refresh the view of the scheduled activities list, click 🚧 Refresh.

As soon as the scheduled activity's Reported Date/Time reaches the current date and time, the Activity record will get transferred to the current Activities list under the **Start** tab. From there, you may dispatch the activity, as described in the "Dispatch Activities" chapter.

To make a scheduled activity current immediately, select it on the Activities pane and click **Start Now**. The scheduled activity is transferred to the current activities list under the Start tab.

#### **Close an Activity**

- In order to close an activity, select an activity record from the Activities pane and click the Close icon <sup>R</sup>. The Close Activity form will open, asking you if a report of the selected activity is required.
- If the report is required, select Yes and specify the Record Owner. The latter manipulation determines the amount of detail that will be contained in the report. If no report is required, select No.
- 3. Add **Notes**, as applicable.
- 4. Click **OK**. Once closed, the whole activity record will be transferred to the Perspective's **Activities** database found in the Data Forms.

Close Ac	tivity	×
ОК	Close	
	Report Required? No Yes Pacord Owner:	
	E Kennedy, Frank	
Notes (Op Closed du	an Owner is not specified, the first responder will be assigned. tional) te to inactivity.	



### **Dispatch Activities**

The following sections explain how to perform dispatching activities.

Before going further in this chapter, please note that users are unable to make changes to an activity if another user is currently editing it; however, it can still be viewed in read-only mode. An activity that is currently being modified is highlighted in red.

#### Bring an Officer On Duty

- 1. Click On Duty on the toolbar. A pop-up window will appear.
- 2. Enter the name of the officer you would like to bring on duty in the **Search** field. To display all available officers, leave the Search field blank.
- Restrict your search by selecting the specific workgroup(s) the officer is associated with.
   Otherwise, check All Workgroups to search the whole database.
- 4. Click Search. The middle pane will display a list of officers that correspond to the criteria.
- 5. Select the officer you want to bring on duty from the list in the middle pane.
- 6. Click the arrow button 🕑 to transfer the selected Officer record to the on duty list displayed on the right pane of the window. At the same time, the Available pane on the main DispatchLog window will update with the new Officer record too. The status of the officer who has been newly brought on duty will be set to Available. A pop-up window will appear suggesting to update the officer's Call Sign.

😤 On Duty Officer								
Ok Close								
Wayne	Search	Officer Name	Team	Call Sign	Last Known Position		Assign Workgroup	*
MS01		Wayne, Bruce	Team 2					
Workgroup J	Ê							
Workgroup A								
						O		
	Ŧ							

7. Select the required officer's **Call Sign** from the list and enter the appropriate **Notes**.

8. Click **OK** to complete the operation.

Update Call	Sign for Wayne, Bruce	
Ok	Close	
Call Sign PPM-004 PPM-000 PPM-000 PPM-000 PPM-000	4 5 6 7	Î
Notes (C Call Sign	)ptional) change	

- Optionally, continue to bring more officers on duty repeating the previous steps, change their Call Signs by clicking the call sign update button (a), or delete some officers from both the on duty list and the Available pane by clicking the delete button (a).
- 10. If required, assign the officer displayed on the right pane to a workgroup outside of the officer's working area, selecting the workgroup's name from the lookup list above.
- 11. Click **OK** to return to the main DispatchLog window.

😤 On Duty Officer							
Ok Close							
Wayne All Workgroups	Search	Officer Name	Team	Call Sign	Last Known Position	Advanced Users Wayne, Bruce	
MS01 Workgroup J Workgroup B Workgroup A Workgroup A							

Note: If two Dispatchers try to assign the same Officer to an Activity, the second Dispatcher to attempt this will be notified that the Officer is already on duty.

#### Dispatch an Officer for an Activity

1. Select an Activity record from the Activities pane.



- 2. On the Available pane, select an officer that you want to dispatch for the selected activity and click <sup>5</sup> **Dispatch Officer** on the toolbar. Alternatively, drag the Officer record from the Available pane to the Activity record.
- 3. The Officer record will move from the Available pane to the Assigned pane and will be supplied with the relevant dispatch Activity Number. The Time Elapsed cell on the Assigned pane will start counting the time the officer has been registered in the On Route status. The Activity record will also be updated with the dispatched Officer Status.

#### **Dispatch an Officer for Multiple Activities**

If you need to dispatch an officer that is currently involved in an activity (Activity A) for their next activity (Activity B), follow the steps described below:

- 1. Drag the Officer record from the Assigned pane to the Activity B entry on the Activities pane.
- 2. If the officer is On Route or On Scene with Activity A, a dialog box will be displayed where you will have to decide between the following options:
  - On Hold: Wait for the officer to be cleared of Activity A before moving On Route with Activity B and temporarily place Activity B On Hold. In this case, a second record for the same officer will be created for Activity B in the Assigned pane with the On Hold status. When the officer is cleared from Activity A, the Officer record for Activity A will disappear from the Assigned pane and the Activity B Officer record will be automatically transferred to On Route.





• On Route: Suspend the officer's involvement with Activity A and place them On Route for Activity B. In this case, the Activity A Officer record will be transferred to the Suspended status and a double record for the same officer for Activity B will be created with the On Route status. When the officer is cleared from Activity B, the Officer record for Activity B will disappear from the Assigned pane and the Activity A Officer record will be automatically transferred to On Route.

O									Ρ	erspec	tive Dispato	:hLog									
Star	t Sch	edule	Opti	ons																~ 😮	
2	$\approx$	Ø	0	3	<u> </u>	<b>"</b>		- <b>þ</b> -	- <b>ф</b> -	-	🕈 🖪 🗞 🕼 🞜 🎽 🎯 🛔 🔯 🔇							Q	-	<b>(</b>	
Start	Close Activity	On Duty	Off Duty	Dispatch Officer	Dispatch Organization	Arrive	Arrive All	Clear (	Clear All	Activ Deta	ity Office Is Log	r Attachmer	t SOP	Refres	sh	Location	Status	Mail	CallSign	Workgroup: Filter	Activity Notes
	Dispatch Actions Record Log																				
Activitie	35																				
SOP	A	ctivit	Number		Priority 🖓	Officer 5	tatus ∀	RT	A Alert		Time Remaining	(	all Cate	gory		V	Local	tion	V	Off Site	Reported D
	CE	1-201	1-10-000	07	High	On H	lold.	9	11 %		00:27:23 Alarm Asis Convention Center							iter		07/10/:	
	CE	1-201	1-10-000	03	Low	Suspe	nded	Ì				Gener	al Assist	ance/Ass	ist	Central	Campus,	Building	2 🕕		07/10/:
	CE	N-201	1-09-001	22	Low	On Re	oute					Gene	ral Assis	tance/Es	cort	Central	Campus,	/Building	2 - J.K	V	22/09/:
4																					
Availab	le									Assig	ned										
	Time Elapsed	7	ſeam ▽	Call Sign	7 Officer/Or Na	ganizatio me	n s	itatus	V	V	Time Elapsed	♡ Team	⊽ G Si	all ⊽ gn ⊽	Officer	/Organizat Name	ion <sub>V</sub>	Statu	s 7	Activity N	lumber
8	4d 1h		2	ERT6	Norton, Joh	n	Ava	ilable		8	00:04:00	) P2	13	в	Owen	s, Derek	ĺ	Suspend	led	CEN-2011-	10-00003
8	4d 1h		2	1318	Camillo, Tor	iy	Bus	iy.		8	00:02:36	P2	137	в	Owens	, Derek		On Hold		CEN-2011-	10-00007
8	4d 1h		2	136B	Hill, Gregg		P-S	тр		8	00:01:17	P2	137	В	Owens	, Derek		On Rout	e	CEN-2011-	09-00122
•														) –							
11	:39 AM																				

• **Cancel**: Cancel the dispatch action and leave the officer's involvements unchanged.



3. Following the patterns and status modification principles described above you may dispatch one officer for as many consecutive activities as necessary.

Note: The Activity record only captures the status of the Organization record that was dispatched last.

#### Dispatch an Organization for an Activity

1. Select an Activity record from the Activities pane.

R © Resolver Inc.

- 2. Click 🏶 Dispatch Organization on the toolbar. An Entity List window will appear.
- Click the green arrow icon ▶ to display all the Organization records available in Perspective's database, or enter the name of the organization in the search field and click the checkmark icon ✓ to display just the Organization records that correspond to the search word entered. Alternatively, if the entity you are looking for does not have an existing record, you may use the pick list's Quick Add function to create one.
- 4. Select the Organization record you want to dispatch for the activity and click Select 💜.
- 5. The dispatched Organization record will be added to the Assigned pane supplied with the relevant dispatch Activity Number. The Time Elapsed cell in the Assigned pane will start counting the time the organization has been registered in the On Route status. The Activity record will also be updated with the dispatched organization's status.

O								F	erspec	tive Dispatch	Log										
Sta	art Scl	hedul	e Opt	ions																^ ?	
1	20	R	) 🕅	2	<u>~</u>	<b>1</b> .	-0-	-6-	14				C	; 🖊	Ð	Hereit		٩	- 6	2	
Star	t Close	On	Off	Dispatch	Dispatch	Arrive	Arrive Clea	Clear	Activ	ity Officer	Attachment	SOP	Refres	sh 💎	Location	Status	: Mail	CallSign	Workgrou	ps Activity	
	Activity Duty Duty Officer Organization All All Dispatch Actions									ils Log	Record							Log	Filter	Notes	
Activi	ties	uten				Actions					Record							Log			
501	SOP? Activity Number Priority $\bigtriangledown$ Officer Status $\triangledown$ RTA Ale										Ca	ll Categ	ory		Reported	Date/	Time Organization Status			Description	
	CE	N-20	11-10-000	09	Medium	Waiti	ing			Alarm 9:12 AM On								On F	n Route		
	CE	N-20	11-10-000	03	Low	On Ro	oute	75 %		00:08:58 General Assistance/Assist 07/10/2011											
4																				•	
Availa	able								Assig	ined											
	Time Elapsed ♡ Team ♡ Call Sign ♡ Officer/Organization Status ♡										Team 7	7 Cal Sig	l ⊽	Officer	/Organizati Name	on 🗸	Status	5 7	Activity	Number	
8	8         00:03:45         P4         C330         Rutherford, Justin         Lunch - 30							30	8	8 00:00:45 P2 137B Owens, Derek On Rout				e	CEN-2011	-10-00003					
8	4d 1h		P2	S10	Dolby, John		Out of Se	ervice	8	00:00:10				RCMP			On Route	• ][	CEN-2011	-10-00009	
•			_					×.	•			_		_			_			) –	
12:07 PM																					

#### **Dispatch an Organization for Multiple Activities**

If you need to dispatch an organization that is currently involved in an activity (Activity A) for their next activity (Activity B), drag the Organization record from the Assigned pane to the Activity B entry on the Activities pane. An additional On Route Organization entry will be created for Activity B on the Assigned pane. You may dispatch an organization for as many activities as necessary, keeping track of all the separate dispatches with the help of the Assigned pane.

Note: The Activity record only captures the status of the Organization that was dispatched last.

0	art	Schodulo	00	tions					Persp	pective Di	spatchLog								
Star	t Clos Activ D	se On vity Duty Dispatch	Off Duty	Dispatch Officer	Dispatch Organizatior	Arrive A Actions	Arrive All	Clear Clear All	Activity Details	Officer Log	Attachment Reco	SOP F	Refresh	✓ Highlight ▼ Filter	View Location	Status M	ail CallSig Log	n Work Fil	groups Activity Iter Notes
50	P?	Activity	Numbe	r	Priority 7	Officer Sta	atus 🛛	RTA Alert	Ren	Fime naining	Cal	Catego	гу	V	Location		7 Organiz Stati	ation <sub>V</sub>	Reported Date/T
Г		ACT1-201	1-0004	14	Extreme	Waitir	ng	0 %	- 0	3:59:22	Act	ivated Al	arm				On R	oute	22/09/2011
		ACT1-201	1-0004	15 I	ntermediate	Waitir	ng		N		Act	ivated A	larm		Acme Unive	rsity	Clea	red	21/09/2011
E		ACT1-201	1-0004	13	Intermediate	On Rou	ute		ļ	È.	Act	ivated Al	arm				On R	oute	19/09/2011
																			•
Avail	Team	⊽ Call Sign	⊽ 0	)fficer/Orga Nam	anization le	Status 🗠	7	⊽ Team △ ▽	Call Sign	Office	r/Organization Name	" V 🤹	Status	⊽ Activ	ity ID		Location		⊽ Time ⊽ Elapsed ♡
8	P2	130B	Si	ieben, Jeff	A	vailable	4	\$		City of	fWaterloo	On	Route	ACT1-201	1-000414				00:10:46
8	P2	141C	D	avis, Ian	A	vailable	2	\$		City of	fWaterloo	On	Route	ACT1-201	1-000413				00:06:29
8	P1	132A	CI	ancy, Kevin	А	vailable	2	P2	130C	Cassio	dy,Natasha	On	Route	ACT1-2011	1-000413				1d 2h
8	P1	130A	0	wens, Derek	A	vailable													
•							•												
	4:55 PM	1																	

#### Update an Officer's/Organization's Status

1. Select an Officer/Organization record from either the Available or the Assigned pane.

Note: "Suspended" and "On Hold" records cannot undergo a status change.

- 2. Click the **Status** icon <sup>4</sup> on the toolbar. An Update Status form will open.
- 3. Select the new Status for the selected officer/organization from the lookup. The choices available in the lookup will depend on the officer's/organization's current status. For instance, an "available" officer may be assigned the "Busy" or the "Out of Service" status, while an "on route" officer's status may be changed to "On Scene" or "On Hold".
- 4. Optionally, enter a short explanation of the status change under **Notes**.
- 5. To confirm the change, click the **OK** button. The status change will be reflected in the entity's entry on the Assigned pane.

Update Stat	tus			×
Ok	Close			
Status Busy		<b>.</b>		
Notes (C The offic	Optional) er is busy filing	) administrative p	oaperwork.	

You may allocate some statuses with the help of special toolbar icons. For instance, you may update an officer's/organization's status to "On Scene" by selecting their entry on the Assigned pane and clicking the **Arrive** icon the toolbar.

Note: You may only "arrive" officers/organizations if their current status is "On Route".

To "arrive" all "On Scene" officers and organizations dispatched for a specific activity, select the Activity record on the Activities pane and click the **Arrive All** icon and the toolbar.

#### View or Update an Officer's/Organization's Location

- 1. Select an Officer/Organization record from either the Available or the Assigned pane.
- 2. Click the **Location** icon <sup>(i)</sup> on the toolbar. An Update Location form will open, displaying the current officer's/organization's location.
- Select the new location specifications from the Site, Building, Location, and Section lookups. If the new location is off-site, check the Off Site box.
- 4. Optionally, enter a short explanation of the location change or a description of the particular location under **Notes**.
- 5. To confirm the change, click the **OK** button. The corresponding record will update with the new information.

Site		
Acme University	-	□ Off Site
Building		
Administration Building	-	
Location		
East Wing	-	
Section		
Front Entrance	-	
Comments (Optional) he packet has been found or	n the left l	nand side of the front entrance.

#### Update an Officer's Call Sign

- 1. Select an Officer record from either the Available or the Assigned pane.
- 2. Click the **Call Sign** icon 🔮 on the toolbar. An Update Call Sign form will open.
- 3. Select the new **Call Sign** for the selected officer from the list of the available abbreviations.
- 4. Optionally, enter a short explanation of the call sign change under **Notes**.
- 5. To confirm the change, click the **OK** button. The corresponding record will update with the new information.



Up	date Call :	Sign for Wa	yne, Bruce			
	Ok	Close				
	Call Sign PPM-004 PPM-005 PPM-006 PPM-007 PPM-008				•	
	Notes (Op Call Sign o	otional) change				

#### Clear an Officer/Organization from an Activity

1. To clear an officer/organization from an activity when their involvement with the activity is complete, first select the Officer/Organization record on the Assigned pane.

Note: Only "On Scene" records can be cleared.

- Click the Clear icon ion the toolbar. The cleared officer/organization will be placed back to the Available pane. The Activity record will update its corresponding officer/organization status to "Cleared" only if there are no other officers/organizations that have not been cleared from the activity yet.
- 3. To clear all "On Scene" officers and organizations dispatched for a specific activity, select the Activity record on the Activities pane and click the **Clear All** icon and the toolbar.

#### Bring an Officer Off Duty

- 1. Select an officer you want to bring off duty on the Available pane.
- 2. Click **Off Duty** on the toolbar.
- 3. In the confirmation pop-up window, click **Yes**. The officer will be removed from the Available pane.

#### System values

The following Activity Statuses are considered System values (i.e., they cannot be deleted):

- Available: Applies to Officers and denotes the associated Officer is available for assignment.
- **Busy**: Applies to Officers and denotes the associated Officer is on duty, but currently "busy" and cannot be assigned at this time.
- **Cleared**: Applies to Activities and denotes the assigned Officer(s) have been cleared and the associated Activity may be marked as Closed.
- **Closed No Report**: Applies to Activities and denotes the associated Activity is closed with no report required.
- **Closed Report Completed**: Applies to Activities and denotes the associated Activity was open, then had a report completed, causing it to close.
- On Hold: Applies to both Officers and Activities; denotes the assigned Officer considers the Activity "on hold" while the Officer completes his or her current assignment. This is considered a "temporary" status.
- **On Route**: Applies to both Officers and Activities; denotes the associated Officer is on route to the site of an assigned Activity.
- **On Scene**: Applies to both Officers and Activities; denotes the associated Officer is at the site of an assigned Activity.
- Open Report Required: Applies to Activities and denotes the associated Activity requires a report to be completed. The Activity status can only be move to Closed either once a report is complete (i.e., Closed Report Completed), or a report is no longer required (i.e., Closed No Report).

Note: To note an Activity's state further than Open or Closed, use Activity Disposition Lookup values.

• **Out of Service**: Applies to Officers and denotes the associated Officer is considered "out of service" an unavailable in the field for any assignment.

- **Suspended**: Applies to both Officers and Activities; denotes the assigned Officer was either On Route or On Scene, and was reassigned before the former Activity was cleared. The response is considered "suspended" until the officer is assigned. Once that happens, the suspended response is then cleared. This is considered a "temporary" status.
- Waiting: Applies to Activities and denotes a new Activity awaiting an Officer assignment.



## Additional Organizational Functions

#### **Review Activity's Standard Operating Procedures**

If you create or edit an activity that has been supplied with embedded SOP (Standard Operating Procedures) specifications (e.g., an Emergency activity at Site A that codes as an Extremely Important activity), the SOP window will open automatically for you to track or edit the completion of the procedures immediately. Note: You can disable the SOP popup by selecting the **Prevent SOP Popup** button in the ribbon.

However, if you want to review the procedures at any other time, you can do so manually. For the SOP option to be active for an activity, the **SOP** box for the Activity record must be checked on the Activities pane.

- 1. To review an activity's Standard Operating Procedures, edit the SOP Checklist and/or send out individual email or mass notifications containing the activity's details, and click SOP on the toolbar. The Edit Activity SOP(s) window will open with the selected activity's Description. If notifications have been sent for the activity, the form will contain notes with the dates of the last activity notifications.
- 2. Check off the SOP procedures that have been completed under **SOP Checklist(s)**.
- 3. View the **SOP Attachment(s)** by double-clicking on the relevant attachment names.
- 4. Click on the individual **SOP Link(s)** to open the related network locations, files, or Web links.

🔟 Edit Activity SOP(s): CEN-2011-10-00016								
OK Close								
Fire Alarm SOP								
1 Notification can only be sent from DispatchLog.								
Email Message ready to be sent								
Mass Notification has been sent successfully on: 11	/10/2011 1:32:31 PM							
Description:								
For any fire alarm event, follow the attached fire alarm SOP Details Email Message Mass Notification	2							
SOP CheckList(s):	SOP Attachment(s):	SOP Links(s):						
✓       Review attached Fire Alarm Checklist       Image: Construction of the construction of th								
< <u> </u>	< >	< <u>III</u>						

5. If no email notification has been sent yet, you can send individual email notifications from the Email Message tab. Specify To and/or Cc recipients of the notification, edit the Subject of the notification and the standard notification Message, and click Send. If you're sending the email to more than one person, separate the email addresses with a semi-colon. The form will capture the date and time the notification was sent.

Details	Email Message	Mass Notification	
Send	To Cc Subject	brian@ppm2000.com Fire Alarm	
	Message	A confirmed fire event has occurred at this site. Please authorize emergency evacuation procedure.	

6. If no mass notification has been sent yet, you can send a mass notification from the MIR3 tab using the MIR3<sup>SM</sup> inEnterprise<sup>TM</sup> mass notification tool. Review the details of the mass notification and click Send. Each mass notification activity will be recorded under the Recipients grid. The form will capture the date and time the mass notification was sent, as well as the total number of recipients, and contacted and responded individuals. To refresh the common database of notifications for the selected activity, click Refresh.

	ary							
Title:	Harper Building Evacuat	tion one Time:	0	Status:	INITIATED			
Initiated By:	Emergency Notification	Expedited Delivery:	STANDARD	Issued:	11/10/2011 1:32:22 PM	1		
Туре:	BROADCAST	Report ID:	8516016	Completed:			Refresh	
essage Cont	lent					Statistics		
Message:	There is an emergency	situation in progress at t	the Harper Building in the	e Central Campus (1	865 105 Avenue).	Total Recipients:	10	
	For your safety please i	immediately evacuate th	e building and surroundir	na area.		Total Contacted:	10	
Response:	I am safely clear of the I am exiting the building	Response: I am safely clear of the building.				Total Responded: 0		
		and a state						
ecipients	Help. I am unable to ex	it the building.						
ecipients	Help. I am unable to ex	it the building.	Device		Status			
ecipients Name	Help. I am unable to ex	at the building.	Device	EMAIL SENT	Status		<b>A</b>	
ecipients Name Duliba, Dary	Help. I am unable to ex	at the building. Responded	Device Daryn.Duliba@pp	EMAIL_SENT	Status			
ecipients Name Duliba, Dary Fernandes,	Help. I am unable to ex e Issued yn 11/10/2011 1:32 John 11/10/2011 1:32	at the building. Responded 2: 2:	Device Daryn.Duliba@pp John.Fernandes	EMAIL_SENT EMAIL_SENT	Status			
Name Duliba, Dary Fernandes, Kennedy, Fr	Help. I am unable to ex Ilssued yn 11/10/2011 1:32 John 11/10/2011 1:32 rank 11/10/2011 1:32	at the building. Responded 2: 2: 2: 2:	Device Daryn.Duliba@pp John.Fernandes Frank.Kennedy@	EMAIL_SENT EMAIL_SENT EMAIL_SENT	Status			
ecipients Name Duliba, Dan Fernandes, Kennedy, Fr Marsh, Lee	Help. I am unable to ex Ilssued yn 11/10/2011 1:32 John 11/10/2011 1:32 rank 11/10/2011 1:32 11/10/2011 1:32	at the building.	Device Daryn.Duliba@pp John.Fernandes Frank.Kennedy@ Work Email	EMAIL_SENT EMAIL_SENT EMAIL_SENT EMAIL_SENT	Status			

7. To save the changes made to the SOP form, click **OK**.

#### Display Activities Filtered by a Workgroup

By default, the Activities pane displays Activity records for all workgroups. To filter the records for specific groups only, click the **Workgroups Filter** icon <sup>6</sup>/<sub>4</sub> on the toolbar and select only the workgroups for which you want to display the activities. Click **OK** to confirm your choice.





# Highlight Dispatched Officers/Organizations for Activities and Vice Versa

- To review the officers/organizations assigned to a specific activity, select the corresponding Activity record on the Activities pane and click the 
   Highlight icon. All the dispatched officers/organizations that are related to the selected activity will be highlighted on the Assigned pane.
- To review the activities assigned to a specific officer/organization, select the corresponding Officer/Organization record on the Assigned pane and click the 
   Highlight icon. All the activities that are related to the selected officer/organization will be highlighted on the Activities pane.
- 3. To cancel the highlight, deselect the 🖊 Highlight icon.

#### Filter all Dispatched Officers/Organizations for One Activity

- To display a list of officers/organizations assigned to a specific activity only, select the corresponding Activity record on the Activities pane and click the vertice Filter icon. Only the dispatched officers/organizations that are related to the selected activity will be displayed in the Assigned pane.
- 2. To cancel the filter, deselect the Filter icon.

#### View a Complete Officer Log

- To view a complete log of activities recorded for a specific officer in the DispatchLog database, select an officer from one of the DispatchLog panes and click the Officer Log icon on the toolbar.
- If you do not select a specific officer, you will have to specify the officer in the Officer Log Report field by clicking the Add icon <sup>1</sup>/<sub>1</sub>.
- 3. From the Entity List, select the officer for which you would like to view the activity log.

- In order to display one type of the log records (e.g., Location Change, Status Change, or Call Sign Change), select the type from the Condition lookup.
- 5. To view the log records that correspond to a particular time period, select the desired time label from the **Criteria** lookup.
- 6. Click Search. The viewing pane will populate with the log records that conform with the search criteria. A typical record contains specifications of the activity number, officer's name, activity-related change type (e.g., On Duty, Call Sign, Location, Status), call sign, location, status, time, and may/may not have a note that explains the record's change.
- 7. Click **Print** to print the displayed officer log.

🔀 Officer Log								
Close								
Officer Log Report Owens, Derek	Garage State	ndition atus Change	Criteria Previous 30	Days 🔻 Sea	rch Print			
Activity Number	Officer Name	Change Type	Call Sign	Location	Status	Date/Time	Comments	-
CEN-2011-10-00015	Owens, Derek	Status	137B	Central Campus/	On Route	11/10/2011 2:10:19 PM		
CEN-2011-10-00003	Owens, Derek	Status	137B	Central Campus/	Suspended	11/10/2011 2:10:19 PM		
CEN-2011-10-00008	Owens, Derek	Status	137B	Central Campus/	On Hold	11/10/2011 2:10:12 PM		E
CEN-2011-10-00003	Owens, Derek	Status	137B	Central Campus/	On Scene	11/10/2011 12:16:02 PM		
CEN-2011-09-00122	Owens, Derek	Status	137B	Central Campus/	Cleared	11/10/2011 12:06:55 PM		
CEN-2011-09-00122	Owane Darak	Statue	137R	Central Campuel	On Route	11/10/2011 11-38-29 AM	i√ √ Page 1 d	• • • • • •

#### **Clone Activities and Resources**

The functions of cloning activities and resources have been designed to help the dispatcher in viewing large volumes of data. "Cloning" in the case of a pane included in the DispatchLog interface means displaying the pane in a separate window for convenient filtering, highlighting, and further manipulation. Note: Cloning activities or resources means displaying both scheduled and current activities, and both assigned and available officers and organizations in the same list.

To clone activities, click Clone Activities <sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>. The details of the Activity records cloned in the separate pane will include the following: the SOP?, Off Site and Scheduled Enabled (checked, if the activity is a scheduled activity) checkboxes, Activity Number, Priority, the last Officer and Organization Statuses, Time Remaining, Call Category, Location, Reported Date/Time, Notes, Description, Call Taken By, Call Source, Address, Postal Code, Site Notes, Initiated By, Dispatched By, and Contact Number.

- To clone resources, click Clone Resources . The details of the Officer and Organization records cloned in the separate pane will include the following: Entity Type (Officer/Organization), Team, Call Sign, Officer/Organization Name, Status, Activity Number, Location, Start Date/Time, Arrived Date/Time, Assigned Date/Time, and Notes.
- You may filter, sort, and dock the cloned panes into the DispatchLog screen together with the rest of the panes under the Start or the Schedule tab.
- To display fewer details in a cloned pane, click the vertical gray arrow button located to the left of the pane. Here you may select specific columns for display, select, or deselect all of them. You may also rename the pane, or cancel the filters previously applied to columns.
- To reset to the default view, click the **Reset View** icon  $\mathbb{E}^{\mathbb{Z}}$  on the DispatchLog toolbar.

					Activities for Owens					×
🗏 📕 🖶 🕱	Scheduled Enabled	Activity Number	Officer Status ♥	Time Remaining	Call Category 5	Z Location ∇	Call Taken By	•	Address	V
SOP?	- IV	CEN-2011-10-00013	Waiting		Security Directed Activity/Facility	South Center/ng	Owens, Derek		Clear Filter	
Scheduled Enabled	V	CEN-2011-10-00012	Waiting		Security Directed Activity/Facility	South Center/ng	Owens, Derek	V	(All)	
Activity Number		CEN-2011-10-00011	Waiting		Security Directed Activity/Facility	South Center/ng	Owens, Derek		(Blanks)	
Priority		CEN-2011-10-00014	Waiting	- 02:39:50	Lost &Found/Lost Property/Personal.		Owens, Derek		Kennedy, Frank	
Officer Status		CEN-2011-10-00003	On Scene		General Assistance/Assist	Campus/Build	Owens, Derek		Mhiessen, Ryan	
Time Remaining										
Call Category	10									
Location										
Off Site										
Reported Date/Time									UK	L
Organization Status										
Notes										



# Glossary

TERM	DEFINITION
Activity	An activity is an event or series of events with which security personnel may become involved. In Perspective, activities are created, scheduled, and assigned to officers or organizations with the help of the Perspective DispatchLog module. When an activity has been closed, the corresponding Activity record is transferred to the Activities component within Data Forms, where it can be further described, investigated, and analyzed.
DispatchLog	DispatchLog is an integrated module of Perspective that enables Security Departments to quickly and easily dispatch personnel and agencies, and to create work orders associated with dispatching activities. As calls come in, you may use DispatchLog to easily track the location, category, and priority of the activities, and to keep up-to-the-minute records on your officers' activities, including which officers are available for response, when they arrive on scene, and when they return. Once an activity has been closed in DispatchLog, it is transferred to the Activities component of Data Forms, where it can be further described and investigated. The banner that opens DispatchLog is located on the Navigation pane.
Officer	An officer is a security personnel representative who can be dispatched and responds to activities created in Perspective DispatchLog.
Officer Alert	In Perspective DispatchLog, an Officer alert determines the amount of time set for a dispatched officer to respond to an activity when the officer reaches a specific Status (e.g., On Route, On Scene), Location, and/or when the activity's Priority matches a specific priority set in the Officer alert. The combination of settings that triggers a specific Officer alert can be set in the Administration component of Perspective. Once activated in DispatchLog, the settings defined for the alert will cause the Officer alert

	timer to start counting the time for the officer to respond to the current
	combination of conditions before their status must be modified.
Organization	An organization is any agency, company, or group.
	The level of importance assigned to an activity (e.g., High, Low, or
Priority	Normal). The list of available priority levels can be set in the
	Administration component of Perspective.
	In Perspective DispatchLog, a Regulated Time to Act alert determines the
	amount of time set for a dispatcher to react to and modify an activity
	when the dispatched officer reaches a specific Status (e.g., On Route, On
	Scene), Location, and/or when the activity's Priority matches a specific
Regulated Time to Act	priority set in the Regulated Time to Act alert. The combination of settings
(RTA) Alert	that triggers a specific RTA alert can be set in the Administration
	component of Perspective. Once activated in DispatchLog, the settings
	defined for the alert will cause the RTA timer to start counting the time
	the dispatcher is left to check, and modify, the status of the dispatched
	officer in Perspective DispatchLog.
	A part of Perspective's interface that provides guidance on the course of
	actions in case of an activity with a specific Call Category, Location,
	and/or Status. The Standard Operating Procedures can be described in
	the Administration component of Perspective with the help of a brief
Standard Operating	description, a standardized checklist of actions to be performed under the
Procedure (SOP)	specified activity conditions, additional attachments, hyperlinks, and
	automated notifications. The created SOP rule will subsequently feature
	in Activity records that correspond to the settings specified in both
	Perspective's Activity data forms and the SOP component in Perspective
	DispatchLog.

# Index

Accessing DispatchLog, 3	Highlighting Dispatched					
Activities	Officers/Organizations, 50					
Adding Attachments, 28	Noting Action Requests, 17					
Adding Involved Items, 27	Scheduling, 34					
Adding Involved Organizations, 23	Standard Operating Procedures, 47					
Adding Involved Persons. See also Involved Persons	Viewing, 13					
Adding Involved Vehicles 25	Viewing Log for an Officer, 50					
	Activities Pane, 3					
Adding Notes, 32	Activity Notes, 32					
Adding Officers' Responses, 13	Arrive, 42					
Adding Organizations' Responses, 15	Arrive All, 42					
Arriving Officers/Organizations 42	Assigned Pane, 4					
Arriving Officers/Organizations, 42	Assignments, 30					
Clearing, 44	Attachment, 28					
Cloning, 51	Attachments					
Closing, 35	Printing, 29					
Creating a Basic Record, 10	Available Pane, 4					
Data Forma 2	Call Sign, 43					
Data Forms, Z	Clear All, 44					
Deleting, 33	Contact Information, 57					
Dispatching, 36	Resolver Inc., 57					
Displaying by Workgroups, 49	Technical Support, 57					
Editing, 13	Dispatching					
Emailing a Basic Record, 33	Officers. See also Officers					
Filtering Dispatched Officers/Organizations,	Organizations. See also Organizations					
50	Email Notifications, 47					
Giving a Related Assignment, 30	Filter, 50					

Glossary, 53	Options Tab, 4	
Highlight, 50	Organizations	
Involved Items, 27	Bringing On Scene, 42	
Involved Organizations, 23	Clearing From Activities, 44	
Involved Persons	Classing E1	
Clothing, 21	Cloning, 51	
Flags, 22	Dispatching, 39	
Injuries, 21	Dispatching For Multiple Activities, 40	
Noting General Details, 19	Highlighting Assigned Activities, 50	
Involved Vehicles, 25	Updating Status, 41	
Keyboard Shortcuts, 7	Viewing/Updating Location, 42	
MIR3 Mass Notifications, 47	Owner Workgroup, 11	
Officer Log, 50	Printing	
Officers	Attachments, 29	
Bringing Off Duty, 44	Refresh, 7	
Bringing On Duty, 36	Regulated Time to Act (RTA), 12	
Bringing On Scene, 42	Reset View, 5	
Clearing From Activities, 44	Resolver Inc., 57	
	Schedule Tab, 4	
Cloning, 51	SOP (Standard Operating Procedures), 47	
Dispatching for Multiple Activities, 38	Start Tab, 3	
Dispatching For One Activity, 37	Status Bar, 4	
Highlighting Assigned Activities, 50	Technical Support, 57	
	User Interface	
Updating Call Sign, 43	Arranging Panes, 5	
Updating Status, 41	Description, 3	
Viewing Officer Log, 50	Filtering Entities, 6	
Viewing/Updating Location, 42	Sorting Entities, 6	

# **Contact Information**

#### **Technical Support**

Toll Free:	1-877-776-2995
Phone:	(780) 448-0616
Email:	support@resolver.com
Website:	https://support.resolver.com

#### **Resolver Inc.**

Toll Free:	1-888-776-9776
Phone:	(780) 448-0616
Fax:	(780) 448-0618
Email:	information@resolver.com
Website:	http://www.resolver.com

